
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, May 12, 2015

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Reaffirmation of Oath of Office

The Oath of Office will be read by Councillor Singh.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 15

Public Hearing - April 28, 2015
Regular Meeting - April 28, 2015

4. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.

5. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

5.1 1250 Ellis Street, DVP15-0066 - Whitworth Holdings Ltd. 16 - 38

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Variance Permit for the proposed brew pub
signage.

5.2 2127 Ethel Street, BL11064 (Z15-0004) - Simple Pursuits Inc. 39 - 39

To adopt Bylaw No. 11064 in order to rezone the subject property.



5.3 2127 Ethel Street, Z14,0004, DP15-0019 & DVP15-0080 - Simple Pursuits Inc. 40 - 81

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To review the form and character Development Permit for a micro suite
townhouse development, and to consider a variance to the Subdivision,
Servicing, and Development Bylaw.

5.4 3528 Landie Road, BL11067 (Z14-0058) - Jesse East 82 - 82

To adopt Bylaw No. 11067 in order to rezone the subject property.

5.5 3528 Landie Road, DVP14-0254 - Jesse East 83 - 91

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Variance Permit application for a side yard.

5.6 3373-3395 Neid Road, DVP15-0036 - Kewal Singh Mann & Jasmel Kaur Mann 92 - 109

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a request by the applicant to reduce the minimum front yard
setback form 15.0m permitted for an agricultural garden stand to 8.0m
proposed.

6. Resolutions

6.1 341 Clifton Road, BL10892 (Z13-0035) and DVP14-0240, Draft Resolution -
Adrian Hazzi & Mandi Moore

110 - 110

To defer consideration of the adoption of Bylaw No. 10892 and the issuance of
DVP14-0240 to the May 26, 2015 Regular Meeting.

7. Reminders

8. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 3/30/2015 

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning Department (AC) 

Application: DVP15-0066 Owner: 
Whitworth Holdings Ltd., Inc 
No. BC0767813 

Address: 1250 Ellis St Applicant: Worman Resources Inc. 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: MXR – Mixed Use (Residential / Commercial) 

Existing Zone: C10 – Service Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0066, for the 
property legally known as Lot 1, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 660, located on 1250 Ellis St., 
Kelowna, BC. 

AND THAT the variance to the following sections of Sign Bylaw No. 8235 be granted: 

Section 5.3.1 (c) – Specific Regulations 

To vary that the canopy sign to project above the upper edge of a canopy from 300mm to 
720mm.  

Section 5.8.1 (a) – Specific Zone Regulations 

To vary the maximum height of a projecting sign from 7.5m to 8.3m above grade.  

Section 6 – Specific Zone Regulations 

To vary the number of permitted signs from 2 per business to 3 per business. 

To vary the number of permitted projecting signs from 0 to 1. 

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Permit / Development Variance Permit is valid for two (2) 
years from the date of Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose 

To consider a Development Variance Permit for the proposed brew pub signage. 

 

 

16



DP15-00066 – Page 2 

 
3.0 Urban Planning  

Staff supports all the proposed variances. Signage was identified in the Development Permit, 
however, the previous name for the brew pub, “Chico’s”, was unusable. When Council reviewed 
the Development Permit there were no issues identified with the proposed signage which is 
similar in form and character to the current proposal.   

The subject property is unique as it is the only commercial property within the downtown (and 
not located along the highway) that is zoned C10 - Service Commercial. All other commercial 
properties downtown are zoned C7 - Central Business Commercial. The C7 zone would permit the 
three signs including the canopy sign, the projecting sign, and the rear fascia sign. The increase 
in maximum height for the projecting sign is considered minor and the sign does not project 
above the top of the vertical face of the roofline. Lastly, Staff supports increasing the maximum 
permitted height of a canopy sign above the upper edge of a canopy. If this sign were a fascia 
sign it would be well under the maximum size. 

 

Figure 1: Previously approved Development Permit by Council 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours as described in the attached 
Schedule ‘A’. No major issues were identified during consultation with neighbouring parcels. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Site Context 

The subject property is located on Ellis Street and adjacent to Prospera Place. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



DP15-00066 – Page 3 

 
Subject Property Map: 1250 Ellis Street 

  

 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Comprehensive Development Permit Design Guideline  

Section 17.0 Signs 
17.1 Integrate signage that contributes to the overall quality and unique character of 

a development (e.g. coordinate proportion, materials, and colour); 
17.2 Do not compromise the scale and visual qualities of a building with the size and 

number of signs; 
17.3 Locate, size, and format signs such that they can be easily read by pedestrians. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Structural Engineering required for connection of signs to building at time of building 
permit application. 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached. 

 

 

Legend: 

Portion of Property under consideration for Development Permit and 
Development Variance Permit. 

18



DP15-00066 – Page 4 

 
7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  March 24th 2015 
Date Public Consultation Received:  April 1st 2015  

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Development Engineering Memo 
DVP15-0066 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



1
4
'-
8
 1

/2
" 

(4
.4

8
 m

)

1
2
'-
6
 1

/2
" 

(3
.8

2
 m

)

2
8
'-
3
" 

(8
.6

1
 m

)

(1
.1

7
 m

)

4
6
"

EAST ELEVATION
SCALE 1/8" = 1'

Sign A
(Canopy sign) location

Sign B
(Projecting sign) location

1250 Ellis Street
BNA Brewing Co.

Front (East) Elevation

66.5"

(1.69 m)

58'-6 1/2" (17.85 m) frontage

1
2
'-
6
" 

(3
.8

1
 m

)

3'-11"
(1.19 m)

31



32



EAST ELEVATION
SCALE 1/2" = 1'

1250 Ellis Street
BNA Brewing Co.

Sign A
(Canopy sign)

8
.5

"

4
6
"

(1
.1

7
 m

)

66.5"

(0
.2

1
 m

)

(1.69 m)

Freestanding channel letters:
- 3" deep black aluminum returns
- Black aluminum faces
- Internal white LED halo-lighting
- Metallic Gold aluminum composite backdrop
     2.5" around backs of letters.
(white halo-lighting cast against gold backdrop)

Pin-mounted letters:
- 1/8" thick black aluminum composite
letters pin-mounted 1" off gold
aluminum composite backdrop
(non-illuminated)

2
8
"

(0
.7

2
 m

)

33



NORTHEAST ELEVATION
SCALE 1/2" = 1'

T.B.D. 3'-11" (1.19 m)

Pin-mounted circles and letters
- 2'-1" tall black aluminum
     composite letters, projecting
     2" off surface
- 3'-11" dia. black aluminum
     composite rings, projecting
     2" off surface

3
'-
11

"

(1
.1

9
 m

)

1250 Ellis Street
BNA Brewing Co.

Sign B
(Projecting sign)

Face-lit channel circles:
- (6) 3'-9" dia. x 5" deep cabinets
- Black returns
- 1" deep black trimcap
- 3/16" white Lexan faces
- Internal white LED lighting
- 2.25" translucent gold vinyl
  border behind letters
  (face of circles are illuminated white) 1

2
'-
6
" 

(3
.8

1
 m

)

2
'-
1
"

(0
.6

3
 m

)

34



35



East projection = 4'-1" (1.27 m)

Sign A
(Canopy sign) location

Sign B
(Projecting sign) location

SITE PLAN
SCALE 3/32" = 1'

1250 Ellis Street
BNA Brewing Co.

Site Plan (East)

N

S
3'-11"

0'-7"

(1.19 m
)

(0.18 m
)

1'-4
"

(0.41 m
)

Total p
rojectio

n =

4'-6
" (1

.37m)

N
o
rt

h
 p

ro
je

ct
io

n
 =

 2
'-
4
" 

(0
.7

1
 m

)
36



37



38



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11064 
Z15-0004 – Simple Pursuits Inc.  

2127 Ethel Street 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot 1, Section 19, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 29557, located on Ethel 
Street, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RM3 – Low Density 
Multiple Housing zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 2nd day of March, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 17th day of March, 2015. 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 17th day of March, 2015. 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

39



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 4/8/2015 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: Z14-0004, DP15-0019, DVP15-0080 Owner: 
Simple Pursuits Inc. No. 
BC449611  

Address: 2127 Ethel Street Applicant: 
Simple Pursuits Inc. No. 
BC449611 

Subject: Rezoning Adoption, Development Permit, and Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: MRL – Multi-Residential (Low Density)  

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Final Adoption of Zoning Amending Bylaw No. 11064 be considered by Council; 

AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Permit DP15-0019 for Lot 1, Section 19, 
Township 26, ODYD, Plan 29557, located on 2127 Ethel Street, Kelowna, BC, subject to the 
following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 

3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”; 

4. That the applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security 
deposit in the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value 
of the landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper; 

AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit DVP15-0080 for Lot 1, 
Section 19, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 29557, located on 2127 Ethel Street, Kelowna, BC, subject 
to the following: 

 

 

40



Z15-0004, DP15-0019, & DVP15-0080 – Page 2 

 
Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw No. 7900/Schedule 4 – Design Standards/Section 4. 
Highway/4.6 Curb & Gutter, Sidewalks & Bike Lanes 

 Variance to allow access from a class 1 collector road (Ethel Street) when an alternate 
access is available.  

 
AND THAT the applicant be required to complete the above noted conditions of Council’s 
approval of the Development Permit/Development Variance Permit Applications in order for the 
permit to be issued.  

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Permit and Development Variance Permit be valid for two 
(2) years from the date of Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose  

To review the form and character Development Permit for a micro suite townhouse development, 
and to consider a variance to the Subdivision, Servicing, and Development Bylaw.  

3.0 Urban Planning 

Staff supports the proposed Development Permit and Development Variance Permit. The project 
meets many objectives of the Comprehensive Development Permit Area. The property in question 
is currently designated as Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) (MRL), allowing for RM3 Zoning 
with the condition that established street pattern be maintained. This application supports the 
City’s broad goals of residential intensification within the Urban Core, while introducing an 
innovative design typology to the community.  

Although the site is just outside of the Character Neighbourhood Development Permit Area it is 
well suited to redevelopment and intensification for the following reasons. The site is within an 
urban neighbourhood and it has good access to services and amenities in Pandosy area, Capri 
area as well as the City Centre.  The site is located on a corner lot neighbouring on 3 sides by 
uses that are compatible with multiple-unit dwellings. For example to the east is a 4 story 
medium density development, to the south are seniors housing and institutional offices that 
would not be impacted by this development. Moreover, the low rise design of the development 
would have limited impact on the properties on the west side of Ethel Street. Further, the site is 
located within 100 metres of two BC Transit stops on Springfield Road which is a corridor 
identified as part of the Frequent Transit Network within the City’s 25 Year Transit Vision. 

The development is well positioned to improve streetscape and edge conditions of Ethel Street, 
especially in relationship to the long-term transformation of Ethel Street to a key Active 
Transportation corridor with separated walking and cycling lanes. The current proposal is to have 
the access to the development from Ethel Street across the future Active Transportation corridor 
rather than Glenwood Avenue. This proposal provides for a good site layout and that section of 
bike lane will have controlled speeds given that the bike lane’s location is in-between 
intersections and heading towards a major intersection at Springfield Road. However, the 
Subdivision, Servicing, and Development Bylaw #7900 states: 
 

“Residential driveway access onto an arterial or Class 1 collector road, is not 
permitted unless alternate access is impossible. Wherever physically possible, 
alternate local road or lane access shall be dedicated to preclude residential 
driveways accessing directly onto major roads.” 

 
In this case, access is possible from Glenwood Avenue which would require access from Glenwood 
Avenue rather than Ethel Street. Due to the size and orientation of the lot, the applicant could 

41



Z15-0004, DP15-0019, & DVP15-0080 – Page 3 

 
not fit the desired building and parking on the site (and meet the zoning bylaw requirements) if 
the access was from Glenwood Avenue. The options for different building designs and parking 
layouts were limited as the developer needed to limit costs in order to create an affordable 
housing project. This meant restrictions on common hallways, parkades, and elevators. Due to all 
these restrictions on design, the applicant is required to apply for a Development Variance 
Permit to have the access from Ethel Street. Support for this variance will encourage affordable 
housing with minimal impact on the active transportation corridor along Ethel Street. The 
applicant has proposed changing the pavement paint colour, changing the paving material, 
and/or adding signage to mitigate the proposed vehicular access and crossing of the active 
transportation corridor along Ethel Street. 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours as described in the 
‘Attachments’. No major issues were identified during the initial consultation with neighbouring 
parcels.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The current proposal is for a 24 ‘micro’ unit row housing project.  

4.2 Site Context 

The site area is approximately 1,665 m2 and is located on the corner of Ethel Street and 
Glenwood Avenue. The subject property is designated as MRL – Multiple Residential (Low Density) 
and the lot is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. Specifically, the adjacent land uses are as 
follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North C2 – Neighbourhood Commercial Mixed Use 

East RM5 – Multiple Residential (Medium Density) Residential 

South P2 – Education and Minor Institutional  Cottonwoods 

West RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42



Z15-0004, DP15-0019, & DVP15-0080 – Page 4 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 2127 Ethel Street 

 

5.0 Zoning Analysis Table  

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM3 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Height 10.0 m / 3 storeys 7.3m / 2 storeys 

FAR 0.75 0.42 

Front Yard (south) 1.5 m for ground oriented housing 1.5 m 

Side Yard (east) 4.0 m 4.0 m 

Flanking Side Yard (west) 1.5 m for ground oriented housing 1.5 m 

Rear Yard (west) 7.5 m  19.8 m 

Site coverage of buildings  40 % 21 % 

Site coverage of 
buildings, driveways & 

parking 
60 % 54 % 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking 

Requirements 
24 parking stalls 24 parking stalls 

Minimum Bicycle Parking 
Requirements 

Class 1: 12 bikes 
Class 2: 3 bikes 

Class 1: 12 bikes 
Class 2: 3 bikes 

Private Open Space 180 m2 180 m2 
 

43



Z15-0004, DP15-0019, & DVP15-0080 – Page 5 

 
6.0 Current Development Policies  

6.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height, and siting. 

Relevant Development Permit Guidelines 

Ch14 / S1.6 - Provide generous outdoor spaces, including rooftops, balconies, patios and 
courtyards, to allow residents to benefit from the favourable Okanagan weather; 
 
Ch.14 / S2.3 - Design new multi-storey buildings to transition in height where the OCP land use 
designation provides for smaller structures on adjoining lots; 
 
Ch.14 / S.3.2 - Develop visual and physical connections between the public street and private 
buildings (e.g. patios and spill-out activity, views to and from active interior spaces, awnings and 
canopies); 
 
Ch.14 / S.4.2 - Ensure developments are sensitive to and compatible with the massing of the 
established and/or future streetscape; 
 
Ch.14 / S.5.2 - Design for human scale and visual interest in all building elevations. This can be 
achieved principally by giving emphasis to doors and windows and other signs of human 
habitation relative to walls and building structure; 
 
Ch.14 / S.8.1 Prioritize the safe and convenient movement of pedestrians above all other modes 
of transportation; 
 
Ch.14 / S.8.8 - Locate parking areas to the rear of buildings, internal to the building, or below 
grade; 
 
Ch.14 / S.8.12 - Avoid vehicle access from arterial and collector roads and from those roads with 
a prominent streetscape; 
 
Ch. 14 / S.8.14 Parking lots should have shade trees planted at 1 tree per 4 parking stalls. 
 
Ch.14 / S.10.1 - Incorporate decks, balconies and common outdoor amenity spaces into 
developments; 
 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Chapter 4 (Future Land Use). 

44



Z15-0004, DP15-0019, & DVP15-0080 – Page 6 

 
7.0 Technical Comments  

7.1 Building & Permitting Department 

a) Demolition permits are required for any existing structures 

b) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s)  

c) Placement permits are required for any sales or construction trailers that will be on site. 
The location(s) of these are to be shown at time of development permit application.  

d) A Building Code analysis is required for the structure at time of building permit 
applications, but the following items may affect the form and character of the building(s): 

e) Any security system that limits access to exiting needs to be addressed in the code 
analysis by the architect. 

f) The public corridor created between the upper two units needs protection for exiting of 
the upper units. We recommend that the code analysis be discussed in detail with the 
Building Department to ensure code compliance prior to the release of the DP.  

g) Size and location of all signage to be clearly defined as part of the development permit. 

h) A Geotechnical report is required to address the sub soil conditions and site drainage at 
time of building permit application.  

i) Fire resistance ratings are required for storage, janitor, mechanical and/or garbage 
enclosure room(s). The drawings submitted for building permit are to clearly identify how 
these rating will be achieved and where these area(s) are located.  

j) An exit analysis is required as part of the code analysis at time of building permit 
application. The exit analysis is to address travel distances from the units, number of 
required exits per area, door swing direction, handrails on each side of exit stairs, width 
of exits etc 

k) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. Please indicate how the requirements of Radon mitigation and NAFS are 
being applied to this structure. 

7.2 Development Engineering 

 See attached 

7.3 Fire Department 

a) Fire Department access is to be met as per BCBC 3.2.5.  

b) Requirements of section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BCBC 2012 are to be met.  

c) Provide a visible address for responding vehicles. 

d) Ensure the refuse location is 10 meters from the combustible structure. 

e) All requirements of the City of Kelowna Fire and Life Safety Bylaw 10760 shall be met.  

f) Contact Fire Prevention Branch for fire extinguisher requirements and placement. 

g) We assume this would be a part 9 building with no fire alarm or fire sprinklers.  In the 
event this building requires a fire alarm, the fire department will make further 
comments.   

45



Z15-0004, DP15-0019, & DVP15-0080 – Page 7 

 
8.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  January 30th 2015 
Date of Public consultation:   January 30th 2015 
Date of First Reading:  March 2nd 2015 
Date of Public Hearing and Third Reading: March 17th 2015 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner   
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Applicant Rationale 
Neighbourhood Consultation 
Draft Development Permit / Development Variance Permit 

 Schedule ‘A’ 
o Site Plan  
o Floor Plan 

 Schedule ‘B’ 
o Elevations 
o Colour Board 

 

46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11067 
Z14-0058 – Jesse East  

3528 Landie Road 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot C, District Lot 134, ODYD, Plan 31819, located on Landie Road, 
Kelowna, B.C., from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU2 – Medium Lot 
Housing zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 9th day of March, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

82



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: May 12, 2015 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LB) 

Application: DVP14-0254 Owner: Jesse East 

Address: 3528 Landie Road Applicant: John Hodges 

Subject: Development Variance Permit Application  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RU2 – Medium Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT final adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 11067 be considered by Council; 

AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0254 for 
Lot C, District Lot 134, ODYD, Plan 31819, located on 3528 Landie Road, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 13.2.6(d): RU2 – Medium Lot Housing Development Regulations 

To vary the minimum side yard for a 2 or 2 ½ storey portion of a building from 1.8 m 
permitted to 1.2 m proposed. 

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Variance Permit is valid for two (2) years from the date of 
Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Development Variance Permit application for a side yard. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

Urban Planning supports the Development Variance Permit application to reduce the minimum 
side yard from 1.8 m permitted to 1.2 m proposed. This variance is to facilitate a two lot 
subdivision and is associated with Rezoning and Subdivision applications Z14-0058 and S14-0083 
respectively. Zone Amending Bylaw No. 11067 to rezone the subject property from the RU1 – 
Large Lot Housing zone to the RU2 – Medium Lot Housing zone was given Third Reading following 
the Public Hearing on March 31, 2015.  

83



DVP14-0254 – Page 2 

 
 

The applicant intends to retain the existing 
dwelling on the southern portion of the 
property, resulting in the side yard variance 
request from 1.8 m permitted to 1.2 m 
proposed along what will become the north 
side lot line, as shown in the image to the 
right. Although the lot width for the proposed 
north lot is 0.5 m wider than the minimum 
requirement (thus potentially reducing the 
requested variance to 0.1 m), the applicant 
would like the additional width on the north 
portion to better accommodate development 
of a single family dwelling. No other variances 
are required as a result of the proposed two lot 
subdivision. 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting neighouring properties within 50 m. No major 
concerns regarding the side yard variance were identified during this consultation. Staff has 
responded to some questions and concerns regarding the proposed development as a whole, but 
not specifically regarding the variance. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the west side of Landie Road between Swordy Road and 
Bechard Road in the South Pandosy – KLO Sector. The property is designated S2RES – Single / Two 
Unit Residential in the OCP and is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. The surrounding area 
is characterized by low density residential development. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 
South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

West 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Single dwelling housing 

Two dwelling housing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

84



DVP14-0254 – Page 3 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 3528 Landie Road 

 

4.2 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA 
RU2 ZONE 

REQUIREMENTS 
PROPOSAL (Lot 1) PROPOSAL (Lot 2) 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 400 m2 730 m2 1,190 m2 

Lot Width 13.0 m 13.5 m 21.7 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 54 m 54 m 

Development Regulations 
Front Yard 4.5 m n/a Meets requirements 

Side Yard (south) 1.8 m n/a Meets requirements 

Side Yard (north) 1.8 m n/a 1.2 m  

Rear Yard 7.5 m n/a Meets requirements 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum side yard from 1.8 m permitted to 1.2 m proposed. 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 

85



DVP14-0254 – Page 4 

 
 

development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Spatial separation calculations required for existing house. This may require a non-
combustible cladding, reduction of windows and soffit protection. A building permit would 
be required. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum, dated December 15, 2014. 

6.3 FortisBC - Electric 

 There are primary distribution facilities within Landie Road. The applicant is responsible 
for costs associated with any change to the subject property’s existing service, if any, as 
well as the provision of appropriate land rights where required. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  December 1, 2014  
Date Public Consultation Completed: February 20, 2015  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0254 
Schedule A: Site Plan 
 

                                                
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

86



87



88



89



90



91



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 5/12/2015 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS) 

Application: DVP15-0036 Owner: 
Kewal Singh Mann 
Jasmel Kaur Mann 

Address: 3373-3395 Neid Road Applicant: Prabjeet Mann 

Subject: Development Variance Permit – Front Yard Setback 

Existing OCP Designation: REP – Resource Protection Area 

Existing Zone: A1 – Agriculture 1 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0036, for a 
variance for the South ½ of Lot 26 Section 16 Township 26 ODYD Plan 187 Except Plan B129 located 
at 3373-3395 Rd, Kelowna, BC, as shown in  Schedule ‘A’;  
 
AND THAT variance to the following Section 11 of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted:  
 
Section 11.1.6 (f) A1- Agriculture 1 (Development Regulations)  
 
To vary the front yard setback from 15 m permitted to 8.0 m proposed for an agricultural garden 
stand to property line. 
 
AND FURTHER THAT this Development Variance Permit is valid for two (2) years from the date of 
Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a request by the applicant to reduce the minimum front yard setback form 15.0m 
permitted for an agricultural garden stand to 8.0m proposed. 

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services  

The variance is considered in the context of the Official Community Plan Policy to ‘Protect farm 
land and farm operations’1. Placing the agricultural stand 8 metres from the property line, rather 
than the 15 metres permitted, will allow more of the existing productive orchard to be retained. In 
addition, there are no residences within 170 metres of the stand location. 

                                                      
1
 City of Kelowna, 2012. Official Community Plan – Chapter 15 p. 15.2. 

92



DVP15-0036 – Page 2 

 
 

In consideration of the additional orchard that will be preserved, and the lack of immediate 
adjacent residences, staff supports this variance. 

Staff notes that an agricultural garden stand is a permitted use in the A1 – Agriculture zone, as well 
as a ‘farm use’ as defined by the Agricultural Land Reserve Subdivision and Procedure Regulation2. 
As such, the use is permitted both within the zone and the ALR. The variance is requested for the 
front yard setback. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The applicants wish to construct an agricultural garden stand in the same location of a garden stand 
that had been used for many years. The property owners intend to sell produce from their orchard 
and other orchards they own and operate in the Okanagan, as well as produce and sell value added 
products such as juice from their own produce within the facility.  

4.2 Project Description 

The proposed agricultural garden stand is located along East Kelowna Road, in the same location 
where a garden stand had been used to sell fruit for many years. The applicants wish to construct a 
new stand, in accordance with the drawings attached to this report. 

4.3 Site Context 

The site is located in the Southeast Kelowna Sector of the City, along East Kelowna Road just north 
of the McCulloch Road / East Kelowna Road intersection.  The property is in the Resource Protection 
Area. The Future Land Use designation surrounding most of the property is also Resource Protection 
Area with a zoning of A1 – Agriculture. Across East Kelowna Road to the southeast are baseball 
fields, which are operated by the City of Kelowna and zoned P3 and P4, outlined below. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North A1 – Agriculture 1 (ALR) Agriculture (orchard) 

East 
A1 – Agriculture 1 (ALR) / P3 – Parks and Open 

Space and P4 - Utilities 
Agriculture (orchard) and Ball Fields 

South A1 – Agriculture 1 (ALR) / P2 – Minor Institutional 
Agriculture / East Kelowna Hall / 
Church 

West A1 – Agriculture 1 (ALR) Agriculture (orchard) 

 

 

 

 

  

                                                      
2
 RSBC, 2002. Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation- Section 2 (2) (a) and Section 1 (1). 

http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/alc/DownloadAsset?assetId=8CCC181D8D864EE1956A235F975B7C42&filename=policy_2_far

m_retail_sales.pdf 

 

93

http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/alc/DownloadAsset?assetId=8CCC181D8D864EE1956A235F975B7C42&filename=policy_2_farm_retail_sales.pdf
http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/alc/DownloadAsset?assetId=8CCC181D8D864EE1956A235F975B7C42&filename=policy_2_farm_retail_sales.pdf


DVP15-0036 – Page 3 

 
 

Map 1. Subject Area 

 
 
Map 2. Proposed Fruit Stand  

 
  

East 

Kelowna 

Road 

Subject 

Property 

McCulloch 

Road 

Proposed 

Fruit 

Stand 

Location – 

in same 

location as 

previous 

Fruit 

Stand 

East 

Kelowna 

Hall 

Baseball 

Fields 

94



DVP15-0036 – Page 4 

 
 

Map 3. Agricultural Land Reserve 

 
 

4.4 Zoning Analysis 

A comparison of required and proposed zoning regulations is shown in the table below. 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA 
ZONE REQUIREMENTS 

A1 – Agriculture 1 
PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Front Yard – for agricultural 
garden stand to any property 

line 
15.0 m 8.0 m  

 Indicates a requested variance 

Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, Section 11.1.6 (f) specifies a minimum distance to property line for an 
agricultural garden stand of 15 metres, with 8.0 metres proposed. 

5.0 Neighbourhood Consultation 

The applicant has gone door to door to inform his neighbours of the proposed fruit stand and the 
requested variance, and was able to contact eight of their immediate neighbours. The applicants 
lease the property to the north, and the owners of this property are currently on holiday. The City 
of Kelowna owns the property immediately east of the subject property. A map showing the results 
of the neighbourhood consultation is attached, as well as the Neighbour Consultation Form. 

  

Subject 

Property 
ALR 

(Typical) 

95



DVP15-0036 – Page 5 

 
 

6.0 Policies 

6.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

Section 11.1.6 of the Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 states: 

(f) Notwithstanding subsections 11.1.6(c) to (e), confined livestock areas and/or buildings housing 
more than 4 animals, or used for the processing of animal products or for agricultural and garden 
stands, shall not be located any closer than 15.0 m from any lot line, except where the lot line 
borders a residential zone, in which case the area, building or stand shall not be located any closer 
than 30.0 m from the lot line. 

6.2 Official Community Plan 

Chapter 15: Objectives.  

Protect farm land and farm operations. 

7.0 Technical Comments  

7.1 Building & Permitting Department 

Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit applications. 
Please indicate how the requirements of Radon mitigation and NAFS are being applied to this 
structure. 

7.2 Fire Department. A visible address must be posted as per City of Kelowna By-Laws. Contact 
Fire Prevention Branch for fire extinguisher requirements and placement.  Unable to determine if 
the property would fall under the Subdivision Bylaw.  If the property does, engineered Fire Flow 
calculations would be required to determine Fire Hydrant requirement of 150 litres/second. Hydrant 
would have to be within acceptable distance.   

7.3 Fortis BC Inc. Electric 

There are primary distribution facilities along East Kelowna Road and Neid Road. The applicant is 
responsible for costs associated with any change to the subject property's existing service, if any, as 
well as the provision of appropriate land rights where required. 

7.4 South East Kelowna Irrigation District 

We have reviewed the above referenced development permit application and discussed the water 
servicing requirements with the applicant. The applicant has agreed to comply with all applicable 
district bylaws. The following will provide you with the district’s water servicing requirements: 

The proposed facility is a 223 m2 fruit stand, to be operated on a seasonal basis during the irrigation 
season. The primary product to be sold in the facility is farm produce from the orchard on the 
property and other local whole farm produce. 

The applicant has agreed the facility can be provided water from the existing irrigation service to 
the property. As such a separate commercial service is not required. 

Under the proposed use no additional charges need to be paid. The applicant has been advised that 
if, in the future, a separate service is required for the facility, additional charges, including Capital 
Expenditure Charges, service charges, metering costs and application fees will apply, and the 
facility will be classified as a commercial service and pay the commercial rate. 

The applicant has also been advised that SEKID will monitor the use of the facility to insure it 
remains within the farm use category. If in future the use is deemed to fall within the commercial 
definition, the facility with be re-classified and the fees and charges referenced above will apply. 

  

96



DVP15-0036 – Page 6 

 
 

7.5 Development Engineering 

Access to this property shall be constructed to allow vehicles to turn around on-site and exit the site 
in a forward direction.  

 

8.0 Application Chronology  

 

Date of Application Received:    February 17, 2015  
 
Date of Circulation Completion:    March 3, 2015 
 
Date of Neighbourhood Consultation Completion:  April 14, 2015 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Approved for Inclusion:   Todd Cashin, Manager 
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services 

 
 

Approved for Inclusion:   Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director, Community Planning            
& Real Estate 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 

Site Survey Plan (AllTerra) 
Agricultural Garden Stand Plans (A1 – A4) 
Neighbourhood Consultation Form 
Neighbourhood Consultation Locations 
Draft DVP15-0036 

97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



DRAFT RESOLUTION 
 
 

Re: 341 Clifton Road, BL10892 (Z13-0035) and DVP14-0240 – Adrian Hazzi & Mandi Moore 
 
 
THAT Council defers consideration of the adoption of Bylaw No. 10892 and the issuance of 
Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0240 to the May 26, 2015 Regular 
Meeting. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Staff has been advised that the development sign was not posted on the subject property, and 
therefore the Applicant did not meet the requirements of Development Application Procedure 
Bylaw No. 8140 with respect to signage.  The Applicant is aware that Council’s consideration 
of its application will have to be deferred. 
 
 
 
 
Date: May 6, 2015 

110


	Agenda
	3. Draft Minutes - April 28 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Draft Minutes - April 28 Regular Meeting.pdf
	5.1 Council Report DVP15-0066 BNA Signage.pdf
	5.1 Ellist St 1250 Attachments DVP15-0066.pdf
	5.1 DVP15-0066 Plans Revised (24-04-15).pdf
	5.2 BL11064 Z15-0004 2127 Ethel Street.pdf
	5.3 Ethel St 2127 Report DP15-0019 and DVP15-0080.pdf
	5.3 Ethel St 2127 Attachments DP15-0019 and DVP15-0080.docx.pdf
	5.4 BL11067 Z14-0058 3528 Landie Road.pdf
	5.5 Landie Rd 2528 Report  DVP14-0254.pdf
	5.5 Landie Rd 3528 Attachments DVP14-0254.pdf
	5.6 Neid Rd 3395 Report DVP15-0036.pdf
	5.6 Neid Rd 3395 Attachments DVP15-0036.pdf
	6.1 Draft Resolution - BL110892 and DVP14-0240.pdf

